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BENJAMIN B. WAGNER
United States Attorney

MARK J, McKEON MAY 07 2§1§
Assistant United States Attorney

2500 Tulare Street, Suite 4401 CLERK, U8 DISTIIEY Souny
Tresno, CA 93721 %*x&?&ﬂﬁ i R{ [Pt *Ni FORNIA
Telephone: (539) 497.4000 R e

Facsimile; (859) 497-4099

Attorneys for Plaintiff
United States of America

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
EASTERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

- 1o CerRO0T3 0 AWML
UNLTED STATES OF AMERICA, | case wo, TECRO0 TS L

Plaintiff, VIOLATIONS: 18 UR.C. § 1343 — Wire Fraud
{Eight Counts); 18 U.S.C. § 1957~ Money

V. Laundering {Three Counts); 26 U1.8.C. § 7206(2) ~
Aiding and Assisting 1bv Preparation or Presentation
MARIE £. SHERRILI., of False Tax Return {Twenty-Twao Counts),

26 US.C. § 7212{(a) — Corruptly Zizterfemg With
Defendant, Administration of Internal Revenue Laws; 18 US.C,
&5 O 1{a (1 X0y, ORZ(ax 1y, and 2R LIS C. § 2461{c) -
Criminal Forfeiture

INDICTMENT

COUNTS ONFE THROUGIT EIGHT: |18 U.S.C. § 1343 — Wire Fraud]
The Grand Jury charges: '

MARIE E. SHERRILL.,

defendunt hegein, as follows:

i INTRODUCTION

At all times relevant o this udictment:
I Diefendant MARIE E. SHERRILL was an individual living in Talare County in the State
and Eastern District of California,
2. Shereill Financial Scrviees, Ine. was located in Purterville, Uslifornia, and was controlied

by MARIE E. SHERRILL. It was created as a California corpuration on May 14, 2005, s statusas a

MARIE B, SHERRILL INGICTMENT
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California comporation was suspended on August 1, 2008,

1. MARIE E. SHERRILL was a registered tax return preparer with the California Tax
Education Council. On or about Ocrober 27, 2005, MARIE E. SHERRILL applied for and was assigned
an Electronic Filing Identification Number ("EFIN) with the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS™) under the
narne Sherrill Financial Services, ine. MARIE E. SHERRILL prepared and filed Federal Income Tax
Returns (FITRs) for elients under this EFIN. She also provided bookkeeping services for some clients.

4. Sherrill Accounting was located in Porterville, California, as a d/b/a/ of MARIE E,
SHERRILL.

5. Paypa Trail Entertainment, LLC (“Paypa Trail™), was located in Porterville, California,
and was controlled by MARIE E. SHERRILI.. It wascreated as a Calif:{zrr}ia carporation on June 7,
2010.

6. Madminds, Ine., was located in Porterville, California, 1t was created as g Califomnin
Corporation on July 18, 2012, and was controlled by MARIE E. SHERRILIL.

7. MARIE E. SHERRILL did busineys as Sherrill Financial Services, Ine; Sherrili
Accounting; Paypa Trail Entertainment, LLC; and Madminds, Inc., among other busincss names and
entities (the “Sherrtll Entities™).

8. Invesiment Victims were people whao entrusted their money to MARIE B, SHERRILL
and the Sherrill Entities.

118 THE SCHEME TQ DEFRAUD

9, Beginning at a time unknown to the Grand Jury but no later than in or about Decembur
2010, and continuing through in or sbout April 2013, in the State and Bastern Distriet of California and
clsewhere, MARIL L. SHERRILL, and others known and unknown to the Grand Jury, devised and
nfended 1o devise u sehame gad artifice to defraud Investinent Vietims, and to ohtain money and
praperty by means of matenally false and fraudulent pretenses, re;iresema‘{ions, and promises, by use of
interstate wire communications, in vielation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1343,

10.  The purpose of the schemne and artifice to defraud was to obtain money [rom potential
Invesiment Victims by means of materially false and fraudulent pretenses, representalions, and

promises, und 1o lull cxisting Investment Victims into befieving that their money had been invested as

3
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defendant MARIE E. SHERRILL represented.

1. MARIE E SHERRILL used Investment Victims' money to pay purported returns to
corlier Investment Yictims and {ur other purposes that benefitted MARIE L. SHERRLL. As a result of
the scheme, at least seventeen Investment Yictims were defrauded out of at least $ 1.3 miblion,

HIL  MANNER AMD MEANS OF SCHEMT: TO DEFRAUD

12 MARIE E. SHERRILI, and others pursued the scheme to defraud through the following
manner anid means and aets;

13, MARIE E. SHERRILL operated the Sherrill Entities as a fraudulent investment scheme
targeting clients of her bookkeeping and tax preparation busingss by using the intimate finaneial
knowledge she possessed of these clients to identily potential Investinent Vietims and to lure them ino
her investment fraud scheme,

14, Beginning no later than in or about December 2010, MARIE F. SHERRILL soliciaxd
potential Investment Victims 1o invest with her and the Sherrill Entities, MARIE E. SHERRILL
attempted to build her credibility with Investment Victims by falsely elaiming that she was a Certified
Public Accountant.  MARIE E. SHERRILL told potential Invesiment Victims that she was in the
business of placing investments into various investments, including “pooled” investment CD’s and
accounts: qualified property hvesiment accounts; pooled tered-rate accounts; and third-party loans to
various businesses and individuals, MARIE E, SHERRILL told potential Investiment Vietims that their
investments were guaranteed, had a low risk to principal, were federally insured, were seeure, and
retumned z high rate of return, anﬁ that the Investment Vielims could receive back their investmenis at
any time.

15, MARIE E. SHERRILL told some potential [nvestment Victims that their money would
be plaved into a “pooled” investment account with Wells Fargo Bank, She said the aceount paid a high
rate of return because the investors” fundy would be pooled with funds from other investors. This
investinont was described in different ways o different Investmoent Victims, MARIE B SHERRILL teld
some lnvestiment Victims she was investing their moncy in g “gualified” dered rate account, where
targer pool meant & higher interest rafe; she told othors they were izw&sﬁ;&g i peoled Cerntificates of

Deposits {TDsY; she told others i way a *Qualificd Propernty Tnvestment™ account. In fact, Wells Fargo

Malg B, SHERRILL INIBCTMENT 3
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Bank did not offer any of the investment produgts that were described hy MARIE E. SHERRILL.
16, MARIE B SHERRILL made vanous misrepresentations about this purported pooled
sccount 1o patential Investment Victims, including that

a. The Investment Vietims® funds were actually placed into sueh an account;

h. 1t was 2 “qualified tax account” with “restrictions” and was “very regulated”;

¢, The investinent funds in this account had 10 come from the sale of real estate, and the
only way o access the account “without possible tax conscquences” was to have the
funds disbursed “directly to escrow” for the purchase of real estate or “hy invoices from
the butlding, architect, eounty fees, lumber yard, contractor, etc.” if huilding a home;

d. If the Investment Victim were 10 withdraw their funds for any other reason. the
Investment Vietim would be taxed [or the interest carned and would receive a 1099 INT
form at the end of the year, and that if they withdrow their investments they would lase
the interest gained, hut there was no risk to the prineipal;

e. The account was “double backed insured,” ncantng the investment was insured by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) and by another insurance provider which
MARIE E. SHERRILL never explained or revealed: and

The aceount earned an interest rate of 8.5 %,

gl

17 Teprovide an air of legitimacy, and 10 lure potential Investment Victims, MARIEE,
SHERRILL crcated the email account address “smwright@wellsfargoadvisor.com,” which purported to
belong 1o Ka muez-Wright, whe was allepedly an investment advisor at Wolls Furgo Advisor. In fact, the
email account and the “Samuel Wright” identity were orgated and controlled by MARIE E. SHERRILL,
andd “Samuc! Wright” was neither an employee of Wells Fargo nor afiiliated with ‘Wells Fargo in any
way. '

18,  MARIE E. SHERRILL provided some potential Investment Victims with altered bank
statcments that purporied 1o be from Wells Farge Bank for two accounts of Paypa Trail as proof of the
amounts in the “pooled” account. The ending balanees of those accounts on the statements she sent
potential Investment Victims were $4035,923 50 and $764,744.66, {or the time period ending November

34, 2012, In fact, the acvounls had & true balance at that time o’ $0.04 and $2.00, respectively.

MasiP £, SHERRILL INDICTMENT
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19, MARIE E. SHERRILL also told some potential Investment Victims tha she was in the
business of making loans, and that Invesiment Victims™ money would be used (o make safe loans which
sbe called *Angel Invesiments.” When MARIE E. SHERRILL received [nvestment Victims' mongy,
she did not use il 0 make loans to third parties as she had represented she would,

20 MARIE £, SHERRILL received, transferred, and disbursed Investmont Victins” moncy
Lthrough bank and asset aceounts hebd in her own name and in the names of the Sherrill Entities,

21.  When she received money from Investrent Victims, MARIE E. SHERRILL did not
invest it for the Investment Vietims, but instead used the money for her personal benellt and othor uses
nof authorized by the [nvestinent ’v’iétims, including in the following ways, among olhers:

a. for gmnbling cxpenses;

b. for the purchase of vehicles;

¢. for purchases at slores;

d. 1o make cash withdrawals at ATM machings;

e. for monthly rental expenses for three rontal homes for three of MARIE T, SHERRILL's
children;

f. for attormey and bail bend fees for one of MARIE E. SHERRTLI s children;

g. for personal medical expenses;

h. for ravel expenses, including hotels, airfare, and car rentals;

1. for withdrawals of more than $520,000 in the form of cash or checks made payable to
MARIE L. SHERRILL, Sherrill Accounting, or MARIE . SHERRILL s children; and

j.  to pay Investor Victims, falsely representing these paymoents as profits from their
nvestments. ‘

22, MARIE E. SHERRILL did make payments to Investment Viclims, When she did, she
represenied those payments as a return on z_heir investment and omitted to disclosc that she was often
stimply making these payinents from money that she had received from Investiment Victims, The
misrepresentation of returns was material to Investment Victims' degisions not o complain, to give
MARIE L. SHERRILL more moncy, and to refer their friends and family to MARIE B SHERRILL.
W |

BMARIE B, SHERRILY, INDICTMENT 5
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V. WIRINGS

23, Atall relevant tines, Wells Fargo Bunk maintamed multiple data processing conters
through which all secount information was provessed and stored, including check card transactions and
checks, and none of those processing centery were in California. All check card transactions with
businesses vutside of Cahifornia required an interstate wire communication between California and the
state where the business was located. All checks deposited into Wells Fargo Bank and drawn on another
bank were processed at a Wells Fargo Baunk data proeessing center outside of the State of Califorma,
thus requiring an interstate wire communication between California and the state where the check was
processed,

24, QOnor about the dates set forth below, in the Stale and Eastern Distriet of California and
elsewhere, for the purpose of executing and attempting 1o execuie e scheme and artifice to defraud,
MARIE E. SHERRILL and others known and unknown to the grund jury, did knowingly transmit and
cause to be transmiitted by means of wire comnmunication in inlersiale commerce cortaln wrilings, signs,

ardd signalg, to wit wire communications between California and places outside of California, as

specified below: '
COUNT | DATE DESCRIPTION
ONE 12312 Fax transmission from MARIE E. SHERRILL, (559 421-1954, in
: California, to Lincoln Benefit Life, (R77) 5252689, in Texas
TWO 11/5/2012 Fax transmission from MARIE E, SHERRILL, (359) 4211954, in
California, to Linvolp Benefit Life. (RB663 $23.8433, in Texas
THREE | 11/5/2012 Fax transmission from MARIE E. SHERRILL, (3591 421-1934, in
' California, {0 Lincolo Benchit Life, {8773 823.2689 i Texas
FOUR 117972012 Automated Clearing House transfer of funds in the ainount of
‘ € 98,885,135 froam the account of Lincolsn Benefit Life in Ohuo, to the
account of F.R. al Safe 1 Credut Union in California
FIVE 0170312 Check card purchase in the State of Washington from an account at
Wells Fargo Bank, California, of domain name registration
“smwright@wellsfargoadvisor.com,” in the amount of §40.8$

MARIE E. S1IERRILL INDICTMENT
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SIX 12/13/12 Wire communication of check from S W, and C. W, in the wnount of
£23,260.26, payable to and deposited into the account of Paypa Trail at
Wells FFargo Bank, California, drawn on Safe 1 Credit Unien, to Wells
Fargo processing center outside of the State of California

SEVEN 1 12/26/2012 Wire comsnunication of check from R.M in the amount of $23 000,00,
payable to and deposited into the account of Paypa Trail at Wells Fargo
Bank, California, drawn on Union Bank, to Wells Fargo processing
center outside of the State of California

EIGHT 9/19/2012 Wire communivation oi check from B.H. in the amount of $35,000,00,
pavable to and deposited into the aceount of Paypa Trail at Wells Fargo
Bank, California, drawn on Bank of the West, 10 Wells Fargo
processing center outside of the Sigte of California

All in violotion of Title 18, United States Code, Seetion 1343,

COUNTS NINE THROUGH ELEVEN:  [18 U.S.C. § 1957 - Money Laundering]

The Grand Jury further charges;

MARIE E. SHERRILL,

defendant herein, as follows:

25.  Paragraphs | through 22, above, are fully incorporated by reference as though fully set

[orth ierein,

20. On or about the dates sct forth below, in the Staie and Fasiorn District of Colifornia and

clsewhere, MARIE E. SHERRILL did knowingly engage and aftemnpt 10 engage in the following
monctary fransactions by, through, or to a financial institution, afleeting interstate or foreign commerce,
in criminally derived property of a value greater than $10,000, that i3 the withdrawal, transfer, and
exchange of funds and monetary instruments, such property havieg heen dertved from a specified

urdawlul activity, that is, wire fraud:

COUNT | DATE MONETARY TRANSACTION

NINE F2VA012 | Check in the amount of $15,900 payable io Bonanza Motors, drawn on a
bank account of ong of the Sherrill Entities, and signed by MARIE E.
SHERRILL

TEN 4132012 | Check in the amount of $13,000, drawn on a hank aeeount of one of the
Sherrill Entities, signed by MARIE £ SHERRILL, and pavable to MARIE E.
SHERRILL

MARIT . SHERRILL INDICTMENT
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ELEVEN | 5/772012 | Check 7992 in the amount of § 11,000, drawn on 2 bank account of one of e
Sherrill Entities, and pavable to MARIE B SHERRILL

All In violation of Title 18, United States Code, Seetion 1857,

COUNTS TWELVE THROUGH THIRTY-THREE: [26 US.C. § 7208(2) ~ Aiding and Assisting
the Preparation or Presentation of False Tax
Return}

The Grand Jury further charges:

MARIE E. SHERRILL,
defendant herein, as [vliows:

27, Paragraphs 1 through 7, above, ure {ully incorporated by reference as though fully zet
forth herein.

28.  Beginning on 2 date unknown but no later than in or aboul January 2011 and continuing
thraugh in or sbout December 2014, MARIE £, SHERRILL prepared andd filed or caused to he filed
numerous federal income tax returns (FITRs) for othiers on which she knowingly placed information
which she knew was falsc and fraudulent as o a matcrial matter. The false and fraudulent information
MARIE E. SHERRILL included in these FITRs vielded fraudulent tux deductions and credits which
MARIE E. SHERRILL knew the taxpayers were not entitled to claim.

29, Asaresult of MARIE E. SHERRILLs fraudulent conduct in preparing and causing (o be
filed FTITRs for others, MARIE T3, SHERRILL defrauded the United States of approximately $233,901,

30, Onorabout the approximate dates set forth below, in the State and Eastern District of
California, MARIE E. SHERRILL did willlully aid and assist in, and procure, counsel, and advise the
preparation and presentation to the Internal Revenue Scrvice, of LS, Individual Income Tax Returns,
| Forms 1040, cither individaal or joint, for the wkpayem and calendar ycars hereinafter specified, under
and in conpection with the matters arising under the internal revenue laws, The returng were false and
fraudulent as 1o material matters as set forth helow:

i
i
Hi

it
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COUNT

DATE OF

OFFENSE

TAXPAYERS

CALENDAR
TAX YEAR

FALSELY
CLAIMED
ITEMs

AMOUNT OF
TAX LOSS

TWELVE

4/15/2011

M.B and D.B.

2010

Unrcimbursed
Employee
Expenscs
(*ULE");
Business
Losses on
Schedule C

$ 3.948

THIRTEEN

4/15/2012

M.B and D.B.

2011

UEE;
Business

Losses on
Schedule C

$ 12,979

[FOURTEEN

4/15/2013

M.B and D.B,

UEE; Medical
Expenscs;
Business
Losses on
Schedule C

$ 9,439

FIFTEEN

4/15/2013

J.R. and B.B.

2012

UEE;
Busingss
Losses an
Schedule C

SIXTLEEN

4/15/2011

L.C.and S.C.

2010

ULL;
Overstated
Morlgage
Interest; false
business salcs
and expenses
on Schedule C

$ 11,833

SEVENTEEN

4/15/2012

L.C.and S.C.

2011

UEE; Medical
Expenses;
Business
expenses on
Schedule C;
Corporate

logscs; Sale ol

Business
Property

3 16,479

EIGHTTEEN

4/15/2013

L.C.and S.C.

2012

Busingess

losses and
corporate
losses

$ 9.316

MARIE E. SIIERRILL INDICTMENT
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NINETEEN 4152011 ' MG and B.G. | 2010 UEE; Medical | $
Lxpenses;
Overstated
Mortgage
Interest;
Husiness
Losses on

Schedule C

13,061

TWENTY 4152012 MG and EG. | 2011 UEE; Medical | $

Expenscs:
Business
Losses on
Schedule C;
Useof
Yehicle

TWENTY-ONE 4152013 MG and EG. | 2012 UFF; Medical | §
- Exponses;
Orverstated
Muortgage
Inferest:
Business Loss
on Schedule
C; business
use of
perspnal
vehiclc

TWENTY-TWO 4/152011 | LG and D.G. | 2010 UEF: $

Crversiated
Muorigage
Interest;
Business Loss
an Schedule
(. business
uge of
personsl
vehicle

7,239

TWENTY-THREE | 4/152012 | J.G.and D.GG. | 2011 UEE,; &

Business Loss
on Schedule
C: business
use of
persenal
vehicle

15,185

MARIE E SHERRILL INDICTMENT 10
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TWENTY-FOUR

4/15/2013

J.G.and D.G.

2012

UEE; Mecdical
Expenses;
Sale of
Business
Property;
Expenses on
Schedule E

$

24,307

TWENTY-FIVE

4/15/2011

JI.and LL

2010

UUEE:; no
corporale
retum

12,872

TWENTY-SIX

4/15/2012

JL.and I.L

2011

UEE;
Corporation
Losses — no
corporate
refurn

13,856

TWENTY-SEVEN

4/15/2013

J.L.and L.LL

2012

UEE;
Corporation
Losscs — no
corporaie
return

9,016

TWENTY-EIGHT

4/15/2011

JM. and A.M.

2010

UEE;
Ovcerstated
Mortgage
Interest;
Business Loss
on Schedule
C; Busincss
Use of Home;
Form 4684,
Business and
Income, for
“Private
Investor
Loan™

11,266

TWENTY-NINE

4/15/2012

JM. and A M.

2011

UEE; Rental
Losses; Loss
on Sale of
Vchicle

19,138

THIRTY

4/15/2013

J.M. and A.M.

2012

UEE; Medical
Expenses;
Expenses for
Business Use
of Home;
Corporate
Losses — no
corporate
return

11,879

MARTE F. SHERRILL INDICTMENT
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THIRTY-ONE 41572011 | G.S. and 8.8, 2010 UEE: Medical | $ 8,348

Expenses;
Crversiated
Mortgage
interest;
Business
Expenses on
Schedule €
Incorrect
Expenses on
Schedule

THIRTY-TWO 152012 | GS.and 88, 2011 UEE: $ 7,723
Drepreciation
Expenses for
Rental

THIRTY-THREE 4/1572013  G8 and 88 | 2012 UFE: Medical $ 15,023
Expenses;
Carporate
Loss -~ No
{orporgte

Retumn

All in violstion of Title 26, United States Code, Section 7206(2)

COUNT THIRTY.FOLIR: 126 LLS.CL§ 7212(a) — Corruptly Interfering With Administration of
Internal Reverue Laws]

The Grand Jury further charges:

MARIE E. SHERRILL,
delendant herein, as foliows:

31. Paragraphs ! tluough 7, wnd paragraphs 28 through 30, above, are fully incorporated by
reference as though firlly set forth herein,

32, MARIE E. SHERRILL gained the trust of ber tax clients and persuaded thom to give her
power of attorney (POA) to handle their tax maliers, assuring such chients ;qhe would handle any
interactions concerning the taxes with the IRS. However, MARIE E. SHERRILL failed ¢ engage the
IRS Revenue Agents on behalf of her elients and ignered IRS requests for docurments during audits of
hee clients, When IRS began to audit some of MARIE E. SHERRILL s clients, MARIE E. SHERRILL
interfered with the administration of the Internal Revenue Laws, knowing that she had caused her

clients’ tax retumns 16 list expenses and other information they ¢could not substantiate, and ensured the

Marik E. SRERKILL INDICTMENT
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taxpayers had Hmited contact with the IRS cmployeey. MARIE I SHERRILY, put forth only minimal
efforts to assist the IRS eraployees with the audit process, rosulting in the taxpayers having several items
an their tax returns disallowed and causing the taxpayers 1o owe additional tax.

33, Throughout the sudit provess, MARIE E. SHERRILL would fell her ¢licnts that she was
taking care of the IRS issues, that she bad copies of their corporate tax returns which she had timely
filed with IRS, or that she was attempting to work with the IRS on the laxpayers’ behalf, while falsely
telling her tax clients it was the IRS coployee who would not cooperate.

34, Omorahout December 30, 2013, MARIE E. SHERRILL was informed thet she was
expelied from the E-File program and her EFIN had been revoked, although she was permitted to file
paper returns. Therealter, between on or ahout January 6, 2014 and April 14, 2014, MARIE E.
SHERRILL bled al feast 119 individual and corporate tax returns via ¢e-{iling using the EFIN of another
person {rom ouiside the State of California. MARIE E. SHERRILL used another person’s EFIN in
filing the returns to vonveal from the IRS that she was e-filing returns, despite having been expelled
from the E-Frle programu.

35, Beginning on a dute unknown but no later than in or about January 2010, and continuing
through in or about April 2014, i the $iate und Eastern District of California, defondant did corruptly
endeavor to obstruct and impede the due administration of the Internal Revenue Laws.

Allin violation of Title 20, United States Code, Section 72120,

FORFEITURE ALLEGATION: [18 UL.S.C. §§ 98 1{a) 1} ), 982(a)(1), and 28 U.K.C. § 2461{c) -
Criminal Forfeiture)

37, Upon convietion of one or more of the offenses atleged in Counts One through Eight of
this Indictment, defendant MARIE E. SHERRIL], shall forfeit 1o the United States, pursuant to Tide I8,
United States Code, Seetion 981(a){1){(C) and Title 28, United States Code, Section 2461(c), any
property, real or personal, which vonstitutes or is derived from proceeds traceable (o such violations,
including, but not timited o

a, Approximately $6,658.92 in U.S. Currency sefzed from Wells Fargo Bank Account

MNumber 8328019032 held in the name of Paypa Trai! Entertainmont LLC,

b. Approximately $120,772.00 in U.S. Currency, and

MARIE E SHERRILL INDICTMENT 13
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c. Appraximately $21,770.00 in U.S. Currency.

38, Upon conviction of the offense alleged in Count Mine through Twelve of this Indictment,
defendant MARIE E. SHERRILL shall forfeit to the United States, pursuant to Title 18, United States
Cade, Seetion 982(a)(1), any property, real or personal, which is involved in such vielation or traccable
to such property, including, but not linited to:

a. Approximately $6,638.92 in US. Curreney seized from Wells Fargo Bank Account

Number 8328019032 held in the nane of Paypa Trail Entertainment LLC,

b, Approsimately $1200772.00 in U8, Currency, and

c. Approximately $21,770.00 in U.S. Currency.

39, I any of the property deseribod above, as a result of any act or omission of the

defendanin

a, cannot be focated upon the exercise of due diligenee;

h. has been transferred or seld to, or deposited with, a third party;

¢ hus been placed beyond the jurisdiction of the court;

d, has been substantially diminished n value; or

e. has been commingled with other property which cannot be divided without difficulty,

the United States of America shall be entitled to [orieiiure of any othoer property of the defendants, up to
the value of the property subject (o forleiture, including but not limnited to a personal forfeiture money
judgment, pursuant 1o Title 21, Uniicd Siaies Code, Section 853(p), as incorporated by Title 18, United

States Code, Section 982(b)(1), and Title 28, United States Ceode, Section 2461{¢} forfeiture,

A TRUE BILL.

Js/ Signaturs on file w/AUSA
FOREPERSON

RENJAMIN B. WAGNER
United Stales Attorney

Mark E. Guilers.

MARK E, CULLERS
Assistant US. Atlurney
Chief, Fresno Oflice
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